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Kristine K. Yates, Pro Se 
P.O. Box 407 
Silverton, Oregon 97381 
(503)930-2709 

FILED 141'[1\/ '171406 USOC-1»: 

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

FOR THE DISTRICT OF OREGON 

Kristine K. Yates; ~ Civil Action No.U,'. \'(-cv-\Bl9- ~~ 
) 

Plaintiff, ) 
) 

v. ) Complaint for Declaratory and 
) 

United States Environmental ) Injunctive Relief 
) 

Protection Agency; Oregon ) Resource Conservation and 
) 

Department of Environmental ) Recovery Act ("RCRA"), 42 
) 

Quality; Marion County Planning ) U.S.C. § 6972; 42 USC § 1983; 28 
) 

Department; Dick Anderson ) USC §§ 2201-02 Complaint in Tort 
) 

Construction Company, Silverton ) (Federal Tort Claims Act 28 
) 

Solar, LLC; Silverton Land Co. ) U.S.C. 2671); 1st, 5th, and 14th 
) 

LLC; TLS Capital Inc.; Cypress ) .Amendment Civil Rights 
) 

Creek Renewables Development, ) Violations; of U.S.C. Title 18, 
) 

LLC; Cypress Creek Renewables, ) §1962 and 1964 (RICO) Civil 
) 

LLC; Pine Gate Energy Capital, ) Racketeering, Section 1 of the 
) 

LLC; Pine Gate Renewables, LLC; ) Sherman Act; of Due Process; 
) 

Gordon Moe; Judy Dunn; Nikki ) Common Law Fraud; Conspiracy; 
) 

Anas; Zoe Gamble Hanes; Jerome ) Negligence and Gross 
) 

O'Brien; Blue Oak Energy; Sam ) Negligence. 
) 

Lines; Patrick Leiback; Oregon ) Jury Trial Requested 
) 

Department of State Lands; ) 
) 

Does 1-20; ) 
) 

Defendants ) 
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PRELIMINARY STATEMENT 

PLAINTIFF, Kristine K. Yates (Yates), brings the following combined 

action against the United States Environmental Protection Agency 

(EPA); Oregon Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ); Marion County 

Planning Department (MCPD); Dick Anderson Construction Company (DAC), 

Silverton Solar, LLC; Gordon Moe; Judy Dunn; Silverton Land Co. LLC; 

TLS Capital Inc.; Cypress Creek Renewables Development, LLC; Pine Gate 

Energy Capital, LLC; and Does 1-20 for failing to comply with their 

non-discretionary duty to promptly set numeric nutrient criteria for 

the State of Oregon as directed by section 303 (c) (4) (B) of the Clean 

Water Act. This complaint seeks a declaratory judgment and injunctive 

relief. 

This complaint also includes Civil Rights violations by 

Defendants, deprivation of rights and privileges secured to Plaintiff 

by the Constitution of the United States of America, providing for 

equal rights of all persons within the jurisdiction of the United 

States, Conspiracy, Negligence, Gross negligence, Intentional 

Infliction of Emotional Distress, Due Process violations, Civil 

Racketeering violations (RICO), and Common Law Fraud violations. 

PARTIES 

1. Plaintiff, Yates, is a resident of Marion County, State of Oregon. 

The matter in controversy exceeds fifty thousand dollars ($50,000), 

exclusive of interest, and costs. 

2. Defendant, EPA is an agency and subdivision of the United States. 

3. Defendant, Oregon DEQ is an agency and subdivision of the State of 

Oregon. 

4. Defendant, Marion County Planning Department is an agency and 

subdivision of the State of Oregon. 

5. Defendant, Dick Anderson Construction Company, Inc. 

Corporation, based in Montana, USA. 
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6. Defendant, Silverton Solar, LLC, is a new Oregon Corporation with 

principle places of business in Charlotte, North Carolina and Santa 

Monica, California. 

7. Defendant, Gordon Moe, is an Oregon resident and co-owner of the 

Marion County, Oregon, parcel of EXCLUSIVE FARM USE (EFU) land on 

which the Solar Array is being installed. 

8. Defendant, Judy Dunn, is an Oregon resident and co-owner of the 

Marion County, Oregon, parcel of EFU land on which the Solar Array is 

being installed. 

9. Defendant, Silverton Land Co. LLC, is a new Oregon corporation 

with offices in Portland and Tigard, Oregon. 

10. Defendant, TLS Capital Inc., is a Corporation, its primary place 

of business currently unknown. 

11. Defendant, Pine Gate Energy Capital, LLC, is a Corporation listed 

as the manager/member of Silverton Solar, LLC, with a primary place of 

business listed in Charlotte, North Carolina. 

12. Defendant, Pine Gate Renewables, LLC, is a Corporation listed as 

the manager/member of Silverton Solar, LLC, with a primary place of 

business listed in Charlotte, North Carolina. 

13. Defendant, Zoe Gamble Hanes, Manager of Pine Gate Renewables, LLC; 

Member and Manager of Pine Gate Energy Capital, LLC; Member and 

Manager of Silverton Solar, LLC, with a primary address in Charlotte, 

North Carolina. 

14. Defendant, Nikki Anas, Organizer of Silverton Solar, LLC; and 

Cypress Creek Renewables, LLC, whose current address is unknown. 

15. Defendant, Cypress Creek Renewables, LLC, listed as member of 

Silverton Solar, LLC, whose address as Santa Monica, California. 

16. Defendant, Cypress Creek Renewables Development, LLC, a 

Corporation whose primary address is currently not known, listed as 

member of Silverton Solar, LLC. 

17. Defendant, Jerome O'Brien, is listed as Vice President of Cypress 

Creek Renewables Development, LLC and, or Silverton Solar, LLC. 
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18. Defendant, Blue Oak Energy, is a California Corporation, whose 

headquarters is located in Davis, California. Blue Oak Energy prepared 

the preliminary plans for the installation of the aforesaid Silverton 

Solar Array for Cypress Creek Renewables. Their address in not known 

at this time. 

19. Defendant, Sam Lines, is listed as the "owner" of Silverton Solar 

LLC, on the Conditional Use Application that was submitted to Marion 

County, Oregon, Planning Dept. His address in not known at this time. 

20. Defendant, Patrick Leiback, is listed as the "owner" Solar Land 

Co. LLC, on a Declaratory Statement (Farm/Forest), notarized in 

California. 

21. Defendant, Oregon Department of State Lands, is an agency and 

subdivision of the State of Oregon. 

22. The term "Defendants" is used in this Complaint to refer to all 

Defendants, and Does 1-20 collectively and individually, unless 

otherwise specified. Defendants, Does 1-20, are individual U.S. 

citizens, and those individual citizens acting on behalf of the U.S., 

who are at all times herein relevant, past or present officials, past 

or present employees, of the EPA; DEQ; Marion County, Oregon; Dick 

Anderson Construction, Inc.; Silverton Solar LLC.; Silverton Land Co. 

LLC; TLS Capital Inc.; Pine Gate Renewables, LLC; Pine Gate Energy 

Capital, LLC; Zoe Gamble Hanes; Nikki Anas; Jerome O'Brien; Cypress 

Creek Renewables Development, LLC; and Cypress Creek Renewables, LLC., 

Blue Oak Energy; Sam Lines; Patrick Leiback; and Oregon Department of 

State Lands. They are being sued here, both as individuals, and in 

any official capacity. 

23. "DOES 1-20" is a fictitious name used to designate parties not 

presently known to Plaintiff. 
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FACTS 

24. Plaintiff, Yates, was born in Silverton, Oregon, is a long time 

resident, and built her home at 1614 Pine Street, Silverton, because 

she enjoyed the views and quiet living of the country. 

25. On, or about, July 2017, Plaintiff noticed several construction 

workers preparing the EFU parcel of land just bordering her north 

fence line apparently for something other than planting of the usual 

beans, corn, or grain. 

26. The farm land, bordering Plaintiff's real property, where the 

construction is occurring, is described by Marion County, Oregon, 

Planning Department as: a 23.8 acre parcel in an EFU (Exclusive Farm 

Use) zone located in the 6,100 block of Airport Road NE (6,100 Parcel) 

Silverton (T6S; RlW; Section 28D; tax lot 1400). This construction 

site is alternatively described, by Defendant, as Silverton Solar, 

LLC: 1550 Airport Road NE, Silverton, OR 97381. No official 

documentation designating an actual street address has been discovered. 

27. Plaintiff did not receive the required official notice of any 

intended construction on the 6,100 Parcel of EFU farmland. 

28. On, or about, August 11, 2017, Plaintiff caused a complaint, 

regarding the non-uniform construction occurring on the EFU 6,100 

Block parcel of farm land, to be filed with the United States EPA. 

29. On, or about, August 15, 2017, the EPA forwarded Plaintiff's 

complaint to the Oregon Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ). No 

response has been received, to this date, from the DEQ. 
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JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

30. This Court has federal question jurisdiction under 28 U.S.C. § 

1331 and 1343, because this case arises under the Constitution and 

laws of the United States. 

31. This Court is authorized to enter a declaratory relief pursuant 

to 28 U.S.C. § 2201, 2202 and 5 U.S.C. § 706. 

32. This Court has power to grant injunctive relief pursuant to 28 

u.s.c. § 2202. 

33. Venue is proper under 28 U.S.C. § 1391 (b) (e) (1). 

34. Plaintiff has provided Defendants with sixty days written notice 

of the violations of law alleged herein in the form and manner 

required by the CWA (33 U.S.C. § 1365(b) (2)). Please see exhibit "l". 

Count 1 

VIOLATION OF THE FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION 

35. All prior paragraphs of this Complaint are incorporated by 

reference. 

36. Plaintiff alleges that Defendants have conspired together and 

acted in concert through artifice and misrepresentation to willfully, 

wrongfully and unlawfully, with malice, deprive her of 

constitutionally protected rights of free speech as guaranteed them 

under the First Amendment to the Constitution of the United States. 

Defendants, individually and severally, did not allow Defendant to 

speak and express her views, before a public body as required by law, 

concerning the construction at 6,100 Parcel. 

37. As a proximate result of Defendants' wrongful acts, omissions, 

and misconduct, Plaintiff has been injured and demands judgment 

against the Defendants jointly, severally and/or in the alternative on 
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this cause of action other damages in an amount in excess of the 

jurisdictional limits of this Court and to be determined at the trial 

herein, together with interest, exemplary or punitive damages, 

attorney's fees and costs of this action. 

Count 2 

VIOLATION OF THE FOURTEENTH AMENDMENT TO THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION 

38. All prior paragraphs of this Complaint are incorporated by 

reference. 

39. Plaintiff alleges that Defendants have conspired together and acted 

in concert through artifice and misrepresentation to willfully, 

wrongfully and unlawfully, with malice, deprive her of 

constitutionally protected rights to due process and equal protection 

under the law as guaranteed her under the Fourteenth Amendment to the 

Constitution of the United States by not notifying Plaintiff of the 

intended 6,100 Parcel solar array construction location. 

40. Defendants' violations of Plaintiff's rights to the full and equal 

benefit of laws afforded all American citizens has caused substantial 

personal and economic damage to Plaintiff. 

41. As a proximate result of Defendants' wrongful acts, omissions, 

and misconduct, Plaintiff has been injured and demands judgment 

against the Defendants jointly, severally and/or in the alternative on 

this cause of action other damages in an amount in excess of the 

jurisdictional limits of this Court and to be determined at the trial 

herein, together with interest, exemplary or punitive damages, 

attorney's fees and costs of this action. 

Complaint Page 7 

Case 6:17-cv-01819-AA    Document 1    Filed 11/14/17    Page 7 of 15



Count 3 

DUE PROCESS VIOLATIONS OF FOURTH, FIFTH AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS TO 

THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION, AND 42 U.S.C. 1983 CIVIL RIGHTS 

42. All prior paragraphs of this Complaint are incorporated by 

reference. 

43. On, or before, August 11, 2017, Defendants enacted and enforced 

arbitrary and capricious written and, or unwritten rules and 

regulations to deprive Plaintiff of her real property's aesthetics, 

peace and quiet, value, and under color of law, and without due 

process, by commencing the 6,100 Parcel construction. 

44. Plaintiff has no effective means of enforcing her Fourth, Fifth 

and Fourteenth Amendment rights other than by seeking declaratory and 

other relief from the Court. 

45. As a proximate result of Defendant's wrongful acts, omissions, 

and misconduct, Plaintiff has been injured and demands judgment 

against the above named defendants jointly, severally and/or in the 

alternative on this cause of action other damages in an amount in 

excess of the jurisdictional limits of this Court and to be determined 

at the trial herein, together with interest, exemplary or punitive 

damages, attorney's fees and costs of this action. 

Count 4 

COMMON LAW FRAUD 

46. All prior paragraphs of this Complaint are incorporated by 

reference. 

47. The actions of all Defendants, either individually or 

collectively, constitute Common Law Fraud. The Plaintiff has been 

harmed by the frauds perpetrated upon Defendants, by intending to hide 

the originators, financiers, corporations, government approvals, and 

persons responsible for the 6,100 Parcel construction, and is entitled 
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to recover damages jointly and severally from all of the Defendants 

for such fraud. The Plaintiff is also entitled to an award of 

punitive damages, attorney's fees, and costs from all Defendants, 

jointly and severally as a result of the fraudulent conduct of the 

Defendants and to punish the Defendants for their wrongdoing. 

48. As a proximate result of Defendant's wrongful acts, omissions, and 

misconduct, Plaintiff has been injured and demands judgment against 

the above named defendants jointly, severally and/or in the 

alternative on this cause of action other damages in an amount in 

excess of the jurisdictional limits of this Court and to be determined 

at the trial herein, together with interest, exemplary or punitive 

damages, attorney's fees and costs of this action. 

COUNT 5 

CIVIL RACKETEERING 

49. All prior paragraphs of this Complaint are incorporated by 

reference. 

50. Defendants, both individually and collectively, have consistently 

utilized "cut-out" organizations and corporations, across State lines, 

to obfuscate, hide, and falsify official and financial documents. 

51. The actions of all Defendants, both individually and collectively, 

which can be set forth in this Complaint by reference, should the 

Court request, together with violations of U.S.C. Title 18, §1962 and 

1964 (RICO) constitute Civil Racketeering, has damaged the Plaintiff 

in her personal and business affairs. The Plaintiff has been harmed 

by the Civil Racketeering committed by Defendants acting as a part of 

the RICO Enterprise and are entitled to recover damages for such Civil 

Racketeering jointly and severally against all Defendants together 

with treble damages as provided by statute, attorneys' fees, and costs. 

52. As a proximate result of Defendant's wrongful acts, omissions, and 

misconduct, Plaintiff has been injured and demands judgment against 
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the above named defendants jointly, severally and/or in the 

alternative on this cause of action other damages in an amount in 

excess of the jurisdictional limits of this Court and to be determined 

at the trial herein, together with interest, exemplary or punitive 

damages, attorney's fees and costs of this action. 

Count 6 

Negligence 

53. All prior paragraphs of this Complaint are incorporated by 

reference. 

54. Defendants had a duty to Plaintiff to notify her regarding the 

intent to construct a solar array on the EFU 6,100 Block parcel of 

farm land adjoining Plaintiff's real property. Defendants did not. 

55. Defendants, failing their duty to Plaintiff, have caused her undue 

stress, anxiety, and worry. 

56. Defendants have induced a constant traffic of semi trucks, and 

other vehicular traffic, that interferes with her life, liberty, and 

pursuit of happiness. 

57. Defendants, by use of "steam roller" equipment to compact the 

addition of "fill" dirt, have induced severe ground vibrations causing 

window rattling and cracks to the walls and ceilings on interior of 

Plaintiff's home. 

58. By reason of Defendant's abuse of Plaintiff, she suffered 

discomfort and emotional distress. 

59. As a proximate result of Defendant's wrongful acts, omissions, and 

misconduct, Plaintiff has been injured and demands judgment against 

the above named defendants jointly, severally and/or in the 

alternative on this cause of action other damages in an amount in 

excess of the jurisdictional limits of this Court and to be determined 

at the trial herein, together with interest, exemplary or punitive 
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damages, attorney's fees and costs of this action. 

Count 7 

Gross Negligence 

60. All prior paragraphs of this Complaint are incorporated by 

reference. 

61. Plaintiff avers that Defendants breached their duty to her by 

wantonly and intentionally damaging Plaintiff as a result of their 

actions and abuse of Plaintiff by compacting the earth on 6,100 

Parcel. 

62. As a result of the gross carelessness and wanton negligence of the 

Defendants, Plaintiff suffered great pain of body and mind and mental 

anguish, all to her, the said Plaintiff's loss and damage. 

63. As a proximate result of Defendant's wrongful acts, omissions, and 

misconduct, Plaintiff has been injured and demands judgment against 

the above named Defendants jointly, severally and/or in the 

alternative on this cause of action other damages in an amount in 

excess of the jurisdictional limits of this Court and to be determined 

at the trial herein, together with interest, exemplary or punitive 

damages, attorney's fees and costs of this action. 

Count 8 

CONSPIRACY 

64. All prior paragraphs of this Complaint are incorporated by 

reference. 

65. Each of the Defendants acted individually and in concert with 

their group and with each other, either expressly or tacitly, to 
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participate in a plan that was designed in part to commit the tortious 

acts referred to herein. 

66. As a proximate result of Defendant's wrongful acts, omissions, and 

misconduct, Plaintiff has been injured and demands judgment against 

the above named defendants jointly, severally and/or in the 

alternative on this cause of action other damages in an amount in 

excess of the jurisdictional limits of this Court and to be determined 

at the trial herein, together with interest, exemplary or punitive 

damages, attorney's fees and costs of this action. 

COUNT 9 

Declaratory and Injunctive Relief 

Resource Conservation and Recovery Act ("RCRA"), 42 U.S.C. § 6972 

67. All prior paragraphs of this Complaint are incorporated by 

reference. 

68. This cause of action asserts claims against Defendants for their 

deceptive trade practices involving the enforcement, issuance of 

permits, and misinterpretation of local environmental conditions. 

69. Defendants have, individually and severally, caused severe and 

undue soil compaction on an EFU farm land property 6,100 Parcel, 

Silverton Oregon, the location for construction of a solar array, 

which is north, and contiguous to Plaintiff's real property located at 

1614 Pine Street, Silverton, Oregon. Defendant's and Plaintiff's real 

properties are surrounded by flood plains. The water table, during 

the rainy season, is already at the surface during the rainy season. 

Fields to the east and west of Plaintiff's real property flood during 

the rainy season. 
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70. Plaintiff asserts that the compaction of soils on 6,100 Parcel, 

which is slightly uphill to Plaintiff's property will cause increased 

flooding downhill. The result will cause immediate flooding of 

Plaintiff's downhill real property, and the surrounding area, due to 

the run off of surface water downhill and the seepage of ground water 

that cannot surface uphill, due to the dangerously increased soil 

compaction. The danger to human health and the environment is 

imminent. Plaintiff requests the Court for Injunctive and Declaratory 

Relief to stop, and or, remove the solar array. 

71. Plaintiff asserts that the solar array installation at 6,100 

Parcel, Silverton, Oregon, will have imminent detrimental Eco system 

interruptions, changes, and will modify the local Eco system causing a 

localized effect to agriculture, livestock, wildlife, and residents. 

Plaintiff is already witnessing the geese flight patterns avoiding 

the solar array. Plaintiff knows of no studies addressing what 

dangerous and imminent effects a solar array will have on localized 

agriculture, livestock, wildlife, and residents. Plaintiff 

acknowledges the Nevada lawsuit which addresses the deaths of an 

endangered species that are dying as a result of exposure to a Nevada 

solar array installation. Please see exhibit "2''. Plaintiff requests 

the Court for Injunctive and Declaratory Relief to stop, and or, 

remove the solar array. 

72. Plaintiff asserts that the solar array at 6,100 Parcel, Silverton, 

Oregon is having a detrimental and disruptive effect on the migratory 

patterns of geese. Plaintiff has observed geese changing their 

flight patterns to avoid the solar array. Plaintiff asserts that 
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other fowl migratory patterns, and loss of habitat will be effected be 

the solar array. Plaintiff requests the Court for Injunctive and 

Declaratory Relief to stop, and or, remove the solar array. 

73. Heavy displacement and compaction, due to Defendant's use of 

"steam roller" types of heavy equipment has caused Plaintiff's 

interior walls and ceilings to crack and windows to rattle. Plaintiff 

is fearful that her home's foundation has been damaged. Further 

heavy equipment use will be a danger to human life. As a result of 

the imminent danger to Plaintiff's real property, home, livestock, and 

human life, she requests the Court for Injunctive and Declaratory 

Relief to stop the construction of, and or, remove the solar array. 

74. Plaintiff reserves the right to convert this action to a Class 

Action combined with other similarly situated Silverton, Marion 

County, Oregon, residents. 

75. Affidavit In Support of Complaint by Plaintiff is attached. 

Please see exhibit "3". Affidavit In Support of Complaint by 

Robert Mahler is attached. Please see exhibit "4". 

I 
I 
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PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff demands judgment against the Defendants, jointly 

and severally, as follows: 

a. As compensatory damages, the sum of $500,000.00; 

b. As punitive damages, the sum of $1,000,000.00; 

c. As economic damages, the sum of $550,000.00. 

d. The costs and disbursements of this action; 

e. Such injunctive relief as the Court deems appropriate; 

f. All future attorney fees incurred in prosecuting this action 

pursuant to U.S.C. Sect. 1988; 

g. Such other relief as the Court deems proper and just; 

h. For the cost of this action. 

~-<\>.~~\1~ 
Kristine Yates, ;~o Se 

P.O. Box 407 

Silverton, OR 97381 

(503)930-2709 
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September l 0, 2017 

Kris Yates 
P.O. Box 407 
Silverton. OR 9738 l 

United States Environmental Protection Agency 
Ario! Rios Building 
1200 Pennsylvania Ave .. NW 
Washington, DC 20460 

VIA CERTIFIED MAIL 

Re: Intent to Sue the EPA for failure to enforce its mandatory duties to enforce rules and regulations. 

Dear EPA, 

l intend tiling a Federal lawsuit. utilizing several federal regulations, against the EPA, and others, regarding the building ofa solar 
array on exclusive farm use (EFU) farmland just north. and contiguous, of my home at 1614 Pine Street, Silveiton. Oregon. If 
possible, J intend filing for a temporary injunction until such time as this case can be heard. The lawsuit claims will cover the 
following reasons why a solar array should not be completed: 

I. Allowing a solar array installation on EFU l<md will endanger geese, and other bird, migratory patterns. 

2. Allowing a solar array installation \vill cause birds, and other animal species, to lose their natural habitat. 

3. A.llo\ving a solar array installation \Vill cause bird, and other srecies'. deaths. 

4. Allowing a solar array installation will cause increased local flooding, endangering, livestock, crops. residences. form buildings, 
and residents 

5. Allowing a solar array installation will cause a local zone of higher. unnatural, temperatures, and glare that will detrimentally 
effect local agriculture. livestock, wildlife. and residents. 

If I should require an attorney to continue with the lawsuit, my claims will most likely expand. Thank you. 

Sincerely, 

Kris Yates 
P.O. Box 407 
Silverton, OR 97381 
503-589-4878 

cc: Attorney General 
U.S. Department of Justice 
950 Pennsylvania Ave., NW 
Washington, DC 20530 
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Agencies face lawsuit over desert solar plants ... file:///H:/My Documents/1614Pine/E P A/Agencie ... 

Lawsuit over desert solar plants' bird deaths 
Sammy Roth, The Desert Sun P1fr'\l:she:d 9:/1 ~,_rn. F·- A.Jq . .2::., 20~~ 1 Updated 10:48 p.m. PT Aug. 21, 2014 

The Center for Biological Diversity plans to sue two federal agencies for failing to protect the endangered Yuma 

clapper rail at desert solar projects. the center announced (http://www.biologicaldiversity.org 

/news/press releases/2014/yuma-clapper-rail-08-21-2014 .html) Thursday. 

Two of the birds have been found dead at large-scale solar plants over the past 15 months: One at the 

550-megawatt Desert Sunlight project in eastern Riverside County, and one at the 150-megawatt Solar Gen 2 

project in Imperial County. Both plants use solar photovoltaic technology and are being built by First Solar. 

(Photo: Desert Sun fife J 

i:_ed~~PP~<:l."-~large Ri"'.~~d~fc:>~!l\Y.~J~Ei:.c:>l~~ 
(http://www. desertsun. com/story /m:mey/?Q_;4 /08 /05/feds-

ape__£-:()Ve_:1 arge- r .i. ve rside-co~_12_t:.Y:::~?;c.'l::::EJ:~j ect-nextera 
/13649251/) 

The Yuma clapper rail has been classified as endangered (http://www.fws.gov/nevada/protected species/birds/speciesiyucr.htmll since 1967. when it 

was listed under the Endangered Species Preservation Act. a forerunner to the Endangered Species Act. The U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service has found 

that there are fewer than 1 000 (http://www.fws.gov/nevada/protected species/birds/species/vucr.htmll Yuma clapper rails left in the wild. 

"They've been listed for decades. and despite all good intentions, we still haven't reached a point where they're a recovered species." lleene Anderson. a 

senior scientist with the Center for Biological Diversity, said. "They're still highly endangered." 

Scientists believe that Yuma clapper rails and other waterbirds sometimes mistake large fields of solar panels for lakes. leading to fatal collisions. While 

it's unclear what killed the two Yuma clapper rails found dead at solar plants - the bird discovered at Desert Sunlight was too decomposed to identify the 

cause of death - Anderson said the so-called "lake effect" lhttp:l/www.desertsun.com/stoMgreen-energy/2013/12/03/looking-for-water-why-water-birds

are-dying-at-solar-projects/3820659/l was probably to blame. 

'That was virtually the last bird you'd expect to be found dead on that project site, because there isn't any water around up there," Anderson said. 

referring to the bird found at Desert Sunlight. She added that she wasn't aware of any other endangered species that have been found dead at solar 

projects. 

The Center for Biological Diversity issued a "notice of intent" to sue FWS and the Bureau of Land Management. meaning the agencies have 60 days to 

take action before the center officially files suit. The agencies could render the lawsuit unnecessary by moving to protect Yuma clapper rails before then. 

Jane Hendron, a spokeswoman for the Fish and Wildlife Service. said she couldn't comment on any "litigation-sensitive issues." Bureau of Land 

Management spokeswoman Martha Maciel said the agency was still reviewing the Center for Biological Diversity's notice of intent to sue and wouldn't be 

able to comment Thursday. 

First Solar spokesman Steve Krum said in a statement that the company "takes the health of native wildlife and plant species very seriously and is 

committed to protecting wildlife at all of our projects." 

"Daily monitoring is conducted at sites to ensure activities are compliant with applicable permits," Krum said. "First Solar is working on a broader level 

with wildlife agencies and industry groups to gather more information and to develop a measured approach to addressing concerns." 

Blythe Mesa solar project wins environmental supporters 
---_Tht:tp··~77;~·;:;;:;-: desert sun. com/story /tech/science 

!.9..E":.'.':.I_len_~FCJY /2014!08I10 /bl yt.he-nesa-sol.ar-

en vi 

The Yuma clapper rail is found along the Colorado River from Mexico to Utah. Anderson said that while regulators have required solar companies to 

contribute to efforts to enhance the bird's habitat. they haven't required those companies to take action to avoid attracting the bird to solar projects. 

"All we're asking is for them to look at the impacts, and make recommendations on how to avoid impacts," Anderson said. 

She added that while researchers are "in the infancy" of understanding waterbirds' apparent attraction to solar panels, she believes the problem can be 

solved. German researchers. she noted. found that breaking up solar panels with white tape seemed to prevent certain insects from mistaking them for 
water. 

of 2 9/26/20 :.7 l;: ":; . 
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"I do think there are opportunities there, and very likely a technological fix, to break up the pattern of these big solar arrays and tip off the birds or insects 

that this is not a lake," she said. 

The Yuma clapper rail, Anderson said, is particularly important because it is a "bellwether" for the health of desert waterways, including the Colorado 

River. 

"If the Yuma clapper rail is going downhill, it means there's definitely something wrong with what's happening on the river," she said. 

Energy Reporter Sammy Roth can be reached at Sammy.Roth@desertsun.com, (760) 778-4622, and @Sammy_ Roth. 

Read or Share this story: http://desert.snNJQsuC 
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Kristine K. Yates, Pro Se 
P.O. Box 407 
Silverton, Oregon 97381 
(503) 930-2709 

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

FOR THE DISTRICT OF OREGON 

) 
Kristine K. Yates; ) 

) 
Plaintiff, ) 

) 
v. ) 

) 
United States Environmental ) 

) 
Protection Agency; Oregon ) 

) 
Department of Environmental ) 

) 
Quality; Marion County Planning ) 

) 
Department; Dick Anderson ) 

) 
Construction Company, Silverton ) 

) 
Solar, LLC; Silverton Land Co. ) 

) 
LLC; TLS Capital Inc.; Cypress ) 

) 
Creek Renewables Development, ) 

) 
LLC; Cypress Creek Renewables, ) 

) 
LLC; Pine Gate Energy Capital, ) 

) 
LLC; Pine Gate Renewables, LLC; ) 

) 
Gordon Moe; Judy Dunn; Nikki ) 

) 
Anas; Zoe Gamble Hanes; Jerome ) 

) 
O'Brien; Blue Oak Energy; Sam ) 

) 
Lines; Patrick Leiback; Oregon ) 

) 
Department of State Lands; ) 

) 
Does 1-20, ) 

) 
Defendants ) 

Affidavit of Kris Yates in Support of Cornpaint 

Civil Action No. 

Affidavit in Support of 

Complaint 

Page 1 

l 
f 

I 
I 
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AFFIDAVIT OF KRISTINE YATES 

PLAINTIFF, Kristine K. Yates (Yates), states as follows: 

1. I own a home in Oregon located at 1614 Pine Street, Silverton, Oregon, 

97381. 

2. I am over the age of 21, and competent to testify in the matters 

hereinafter set forth. 

3. My Pine Street property is located south, downhill of, and contiguous 

with, the solar array being constructed on a 23.8 acre parcel in an EFU 

(Exclusive Farm Use) zone located in the 6,100 block of Airport Road NE 

(6,100 Parcel) Silverton (T6S; RlW; Section 28D; tax lot 1400). 

4. I have not seen, or been informed of, an E.P.A., D.E.Q., or Marion 

County, Oregon, study, or report, notifying me of the installation of the 

large solar panel array on Exclusive Farm Use (EFU) farm property directly 

North from my 1614 Pine Street Silverton, Oregon, property. 

5. My Pine Street property is surrounded by flood planes. During the 

rainy season, the ground water level on my Pine Street property is at the 

surface. Surrounding farm properties flood during the winter. 

6. There is heavy soil compaction occurring on the solar array property. 

This heavy soil compaction will have, I believe, two detrimental effects: 

a. Heavy soil compaction will increase surface waters runoff, 

downhill, and cause flooding of my Pine Street property. 

b. Heavy soil compaction will prevent subsurface ground waters from 

surfacing thereby forcing them downhill, to my Pine Street property, 

causing increased flooding. 

7. Increased heat from the solar array, I believe, will cause serious Eco 

systems interruptions and create a local zone of higher ozone levels, 

unnatural temperatures, that will detrimentally effect local agriculture, 

livestock, wildlife, and residents 

8. Increased heat and reflection(s) from the solar array panels and 

structures, , I believe, will cause increased risk of fire for surrounding 

trees, grasses, shrubbery, and existing buildings. 

Affidavit of Kris Yates Page 2 
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9. Increased heat and reflection(s) from the solar array panels and 

structures, , I believe, will cause the deaths of local wildlife, 

livestock, and residents. 

10. Displacement and relocation of soil at the installation site, through 

the use of heavy equipment, has caused my home, windows, and walls to 

shake as if hit by a midsize earthquake or tremor. I have noticed cracks 

in our walls and concrete. 

11. The intended solar array installation, I believe, is a threat and 

clear and present danger to the current long term farmland owners, their 

real and personal property, the local ecosystems, livestock, and wildlife. 

12. The solar array is a disruption to the piece and quiet of my rural 

setting. 

13. I am concerned about the diminished value of my property because of 

the adjacent solar array project. The solar array severely impacts on the 

scenery, noise levels, and potential health effects. 

14. I do not enjoy my property nearly as much as previous to the ongoing 

construction of the solar array, as well as the potential health side 

effects construction may cause. 

15. Among my rights, are the abilities to challenge the adequacy of the 

permitting process in court and participate in the permitting process. 

16. For all the foregoing reasons, I request the Court to grant my 

proposed Declaratory Judgment and Injunction. 

P.O. Box 407 

Silverton, OR 97381 

(503)930-2709 

My Commission Expires: 

Affidavit of Kris Yates 

Dated 

OFFICIAL STAMP 
KELLI DAWN CONNER 
NOTARY PUBLIC-OREGON 
COMMISSION NO. 950076 

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES MAY 25, 2020 

PUBLIC FOR OREGON 

Page 3 
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Kristine K. Yates, Pro Se 
P.O. Box 407 
Silverton, Oregon 97381 
(503)930-2709 

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

FOR THE DISTRICT OF OREGON 

) 
Kristine K. Yates; ) Civil Action No. 

) 
Plaintiff, ) 

) 
v. ) Affidavit, of Robert Mahler, in 

) 
United States Environmental ) Support of Complaint 

) 
Protection Agency; Oregon ) 

) 
Department of Environmental ) 

) 
Quality; Marion County Planning ) 

) 
Department; Dick Anderson ) 

) 
Construction Company, Silverton ) 

) 
Solar, LLC; Silverton Land Co. ) 

) 
LLC; TLS Capital Inc.; Cypress ) 

) 
Creek Renewables Development, ) 

) 
LLC; Cypress Creek Renewables, ) 

) 
LLC; Pine Gate Energy Capital, ) 

) 
LLC; Pine Gate Renewables, LLC; ) 

) 
Gordon Moe; Judy Dunn; Nikki ) 

) 
Anas; Zoe Gamble Hanes; Jerome ) 

) 
O'Brien; Blue Oak Energy; Sam ) 

) 
Lines; Patrick Leiback; Oregon ) 

) 
Department of State Lands; ) 

) 
Does 1-20, ) 

) 
Defendants ) 

Affidavit of Robert Mahler in Support of Complaint Page 1 
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AFFIDAVIT OF ROBERT MAHLER 

I, Robert Mahler, state under oath as follows: 

1. I reside with my wife, Kristine Yates, at our home in Oregon located 

at 1614 Pine Street, Silverton, Oregon, 97381. 

2. I am way over the age of 21, and yet still competent to testify in the 

matters hereinafter set forth. 

3. Our Pine Street property is located south, downhill of, and contiguous 

with, the solar array being constructed on a 23.8 acre parcel in an EFU 

(Exclusive Farm Use) zone located in the 6,100 block of Airport Road NE 

(6,100 Parcel) Silverton (T6S; RlW; Section 280; tax lot 1400). 

4. I have not seen, or been informed of, any environmental study, or 

report, notifying me of the effects the installation of a solar panel 

array on Exclusive Farm Use (EFU) farm property directly North from our 

1614 Pine Street Silverton, Oregon homestead, will have on the local 

environment. 

5. I have seen evidence that our Pine Street property is surrounded by 

flood planes. I have seen, during the rainy season, that the ground water 

level on our Pine Street property is at the surface. Farmland properties, 

adjacent to our property to the east and west, flood during the winter. 

6. I have seen, and felt the strong vibrations of, heavy soil compaction 

occurring on the solar array property behind our homestead. This heavy 

soil compaction will have, I believe, two detrimental effects: 

a. Heavy soil compaction will increase surface waters runoff, 

downhill, and cause flooding of our Pine Street property. 

b. Heavy soil compaction will prevent subsurface ground waters from 

surfacing thereby forcing them downhill, to our Pine Street property, 

causing increased flooding. 

7. I believe, that the above ground effect of the solar array panel close 

knit configuration will undoubtedly concentrate rainfall, from a normal 

dispersed pattern, into heavy surface currents much more likely to flood 

our land, home, and surrounding properties. 

Affidavit of Robert Mahler in Support of Complaint Page 2 
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8. Increased heat from the solar array, I believe, will cause serious Eco 

systems interruptions and create a local zone of higher ozone levels, 

unnatural temperatures, that will detrimentally effect local agriculture, 

livestock, wildlife, and residents 

9. Increased heat and reflection(s) from the solar array panels and 

structures, I believe, will cause increased risk of fire for surrounding 

trees, grasses, shrubbery, and existing buildings in the summer months. 

10. Increased heat and reflection(s) from the solar array panels and 

structures, I believe, may cause the deaths of local wildlife, livestock, 

and residents. 

11. Displacement and relocation of soil at the installation site, through 

the use of heavy equipment, has caused our home, windows, and walls to 

shake as if hit by a midsize earthquake. I grew up in Southern California 

and have been in several earthquakes. I have noticed new cracks in our 

homes' walls and concrete caused by the heavy construction. 

12. The intended solar array installation, I believe, is a threat and 

clear and present danger to the current local long term farmland owners, 

their real and personal property, the local ecosystems, livestock, and 

wildlife. 

13. The solar array is a disruption to the piece and quiet of our rural 

setting. 

14. I am concerned about the diminished value of our real property 

because of the adjacent solar array project. The solar array severely 

impacts on the scenery, noise levels, and potential health effects. 

15. I do not enjoy our property nearly as much as previous to the ongoing 

construction of the solar array, as well as the potential health side 

effects construction may cause. 

16. Among my rights, is the ability to challenge the adequacy of the 

permitting process in court and participate in the permitting process. 

17. I believe that Marion County, Oregon is wrong to have granted 

permission for installation of the aforesaid solar array because the 

County did not fully investigate our particular local land characteristics. 

Affidavit of Robert Mahler in Support of Complaint Page 3 
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18. I believe that greed, rather than prevalent and normal farming 

practices, was the impetus that forced the idea of the solar array 

abomination. 

19. For all the foregoing reasons, I request the Court to grant Kristine 

Yates' Prayer For Relief . 

Bob Mahler 

P.O. Box 7658 

Salem, OR 97303 

(503)589-4878 

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this 

My Commission Expires: /~ 'lJ'- }_D}q 

OFFICIAL STAMP 
KARA E BACHAND 

NOTARY PUBLIC-OREGON 
COMMISSION NO. 944131 

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES OCTOBER 28, 2019 

Affidavit of Robert Mahler in Support of Complaint 

Dated 

PUBLIC FOR OREGON 
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